United Nations AJc.a53/SR 5

N, General Assembly Distr.: General
V Fifty-third session 14 Decemb@®98
p .
N\t~ . English
=7 (Official Records Original: Russian
Special Political and Decolonization Committee (Fourth Committee)
Summary record of the 5th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Friday, 9 October 1998, at 10 a.m.
Chairman ME. MACEAO . ... (Mexico)

Contents
Election of officers

Agenda item 18: Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to
Colonial Countries and Peoples (Territories not covered under other agenda items)
(continued

Hearing of petitioners

Agenda item 18: Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to
Colonial Countries and Peoples (Territories not covered under other agendd items)
(continued

Agenda item 87: Information from Non-Self-Governing Territories transmitted under
Article 73 e of the Charter of the United Natiohscqntinued

Agenda item 88: Economic and other activities which affect the interests of the peoples of
the Non-Self-Governing Territoriéscntinued

Agenda item 89: Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to
Colonial Countries and Peoples by the specialized agencies and the international
institutions associated with the United Nationsofitinued

Agenda item 12: Report of the Economic and Social Colincntinued

Agenda item 90: Offers by Member States of study and training facilities for inhabitants
of Non-Self-Governing Territoriés continued

" Items which the Committee has decided to consider together.

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-81522 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9881522E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.4/53/SR.5<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.4/53/SR.5

The meeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m. operation mandated to supervise the governance of a Territory
and the demobilization and cantonment of approximately
) ) 200,000 troops. Moreover, MINURSO was facing the
Election of officers problem of unrealistic timelines for carrying out its activities
1. The Chairman said that the Group of Westerndictated by political considerations rather than the actual
European and Other States had nominated Mr. Caril&fuation on the ground. For example, Mooan forces were
(Turkey) for the office of Vice-Chairman of the Committeet0 be reduced from nearly 120,000 to 65,000 in only three
In view of the absence of other nominations and in accordan@@nths. Although it was possible that the mandate of
with rule 103 of the rules of procedure of the Generdf!INURSO would be renewed following the referendum,
Assembly and established practice, if there were AINURSO was scheduled to withdraw completely one month
objections he would take it that the Committee wished to eleléter in the midst of a potentially violent political

Mr. Carikgi (Turkey) to the office of Vice-Chairman of theenvironment. Small obstructions betrayed the larger
Committee. dysfunction. Diplomats and foreign correspondents were once

again being banned from MINURSO flights to Laayoune; the
¥irmaments and communications equipment for the Pakistani
and Swedish demining contingents were being withheld by
3. Mr. Carikci (Turkey) expressed appreciation for thehe Moroccan Government, and accusations of disappearances
confidence placed in him, and said that he hoped to work rad escalated throughout the summer. In the end, on 7 June,
close cooperation with the Committee. D-Day, the beginning of the transition period had simply not
been announced. In order to put the peace process back on
Agenda item 18: Implementation of the Declaration on track, high-level direct negotiations must be resumed, and
the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries were planned for late October in Lisbon.
and Peoples (Territories not covered under other 6
agenda items)continued :

2. Mr. Carikgi (Turkey) was elected Vice-Chairman b
acclamation

The referendum was viewed by States as the sole exit
strategy. The continued paralysis of the identification process

Hearing of petitioners handicapped the development of the capacities and
Question of Western Saha(a/C.4/53/4 and institutions required for the safe return of Saharan refugees.
Add.1) ' So far, the United Nations-sponsored presence within the

o . _ Territory had played into the hands of the Moroccan
4. Attheinvitation of the Chairman, Mr. Bhatia (Brownaythorities. The United Nations-monitored ceasefire had
University) took a place at the petitioners’ table enabled the Moroccan authorities to consolidate their

5. Mr.Bhatia (Brown University) said that approximatelyPresence and begin to alter the demographic character of the
one year previous|y there had been a dec|ded|y different aJ@ritory. That aCtiVity had continued during the identification
surrounding the peace process in Western Sahara. THecess, which had altered the nature of the referendum both
Secretary-General's personal envoy, Mr. James Baker, forniéferms of its participants, and in terms of how it would be
Secretary of State of the United States of America, h&@nducted. The conditions within the Moroccan-controlled
concluded that the solution to the question of Western Sahygstern portion of the Territory necessitated a cautious
still lay in a free and fair referedum, which corresponded torésponse to the repatriation programme sponsored by the
the wishes of the parties. The first direct negotiations to reag}fice of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees
agreement on the disputed elements of the implementatiéfNHCR). There was a massive Moroccan security presence
plan had been held in Lisbon, London and Houston. Botithin the Territory, and neither MINURSO, nor UNHCR,
parties had agreed not to present any member of the contedtad freedom of movement. The sole representatives of the
tribes to the identification commission, apart from those whgternational community within the Territory were the
had been registered on the 1974 census. The United Natidf@nitors of the Organization of African Unity (OAU).
Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSd)though internationahon-governmental organizations and
had been deployed in 1991 \Witut the formal acceptance ofPress bodies had sent delegations to the Territory, they had
both parties to a peace agreement, which had affected gt been able to develop the consistent presence necessary
possibilities of fulfilling its mandate. Weaknesses hatp ensure the transparency of the referendum process or the
remained in the mandate and force structure of MINURSggcurity of the refugees. UNHCR not only had to provide for
and the timetable for its activities. The deployment of 2,80e transportation and maintenance of the refugees, but also
civilian and military personnel was inadequate for an



A/C.4/53/SR.5

had to ensure their safety and establish reintegration and 10. Such statements in no way contributed to the work of
rehabilitation programmes after the referendum. the Committee, and Morocco’s position therefore remained

7. MINURSO and UNHCR must immediately be grantenchanged: petitioners who had no connection with a
complete freedom of access to and movement in the Territo-lr 'rrlto_ry should not be given permission to speak in the
During the transitional period, the United Nations woul ommittee.

assume a more active role in the governance of the Territory Mr. Bhatia (Brown University) said that the key

and the creation of the conditions necessary for the safe return  element which linked him and the other petitioners with the
of refugees. Over the past decade, the human rights Territory was the need to ensure openness. That meant that,
monitoring capabilities of the United Nations and various inorder to ensure observance by both sides of the provisions
regional bodies such as the Organization for Security and of the Houston agreements it was necessary to involve
Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) had developed rapidly. The persons from outside the Territory who had visited it, who
conditions within the Territory and the mandate of UNHCR, were studying the question or who were interested in it. In
which was exclusively to monitor the return process, required other respects the arguments of the representative of Morocco
the incorporation of those additional actors. were mainly rhetorical in nature and had not refuted what had

8. Mr. Zahid (Morocco) said that, as expected, th&€€n said.

statement by the first petitioner on the question of Western 1Mr. Zahid (Morocco) said he had asked why the
Sahara had confirmed misgivings that the petitioner had notitipeer had confined himself to paragraph 1 of section |
connection with the Territory. The statement had consisted (Compromise agreement on outstanding identification issues),
of indiscriminate criticism of all aspects of the process, the  which stated that “the parties agree that they will not directly
settlement plan, MINURSO, and also a false interpretation or indirectly sponsor or present for identification anyone from
of the Houston agreements. He wondered whether the tribal groupings H41, H61 and J51/52 other than persons
petitioner had read paragraph 1 of the compromise agreement included in the Spanish cE®8d8,aftnd had declined to

on outstanding identification issues. The petitioner had said quote the next part of the paragraph which stated that
that the parties had agreed that they would not present for “identification of any such individuals who may present
identification anyone from tribal groupings H41, H61, or themselves shall proceed as soon as possible”. That was the
J51/52 other than persons included in the Spanish census of substance of his question, which was anything but rhetorical.
1974, but had stopped there. That amounted to an incorrect At the leastitioe@emight answer that question, as well
interpretation of the text of the agreement, since it wenton as the question about the presence of non-governmental
to say that the parties should not be obligated to actively organizations which, as wisomell was governed by the
prevent individuals from such tribal groupings from code of conduct and settlement plan. It was incomprehensible
presenting themselves for identification. The reality was that that permission could be given for the presence of non-
persons in that category were presenting themselves for governmental organizations prior to the completion of the
identification, which was confirmed by the reports of the identification process. The questions he had raised were thus
Secretary-General which indicated that about 65,000 people of an extremely specific nature.

had done so. 13. Mr.Bhatia (Brown University) said he had pointed to

9. The question arose as to why the petitioner had not the fact that persons included in the Spanish ¢&Tdus of
included those facts in his statement. He had also cast doubt could present themselves for identification. The question was,
on Morocco’s willingness to ensure that the registration however, whether such persons presenting themselves for
process was carried out. Morocco was one of the first States  identification were sponsored by the Government.
to have recognized the right to voluntary repatriation. It w
incomprehensible that a State could be reproached for trying’
to ensure law and order. The presence of security forceslte- Atthe invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Ahmed (Frente
ensure the maintenance of order was provided for in the cog@pular para la Liberacion de Saguia el-Hamra y de Rio
of conduct for the refemedum campaign in Western Saharade Oro (Frente POLISARIO) took a place at the petitioners’
as were questions of freedom of movement. However, judgif@fle:
by the statement, one had the impression that the settlemegt Mr. Ahmed (Frente POLISARIO) said that, thanks to
plan needed to be reviewed and everything needed to fh@¢ Houston agreements, it had been possible to solve the
started from the beginning. major problems which had been impeding the implementation
of the joint peace plan of the United Nations and the

Mr. Bhatia (Brown University) withdrew



A/C.4/53/SR.5

Organization of African Unity. One of the problems had been General had expressed the hope that an agreement might be
that of identifying potential voters. Since the establishment concluded, noting that, while he welcomed the agreement of
of the Identification Commission for the referendum in the Moroccan authorities to formalize the presence of the
Western Sahara, a total of 180,000 applicants had been Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees
convoked. Of thos&47,000 had appeared for interview. It (UNHCR), he remained concerned that they had yet to take
was common knowledge that in the original peace plan, it had concrete action to enable UNHCR to carry ece sisany
been established that the electoral body would be determined preparatory work for the repatriation of Saharan refugees
on the basis of an updated 1974 Spanish census. However, eligible to vote and their immediese fiaras clear from
Morocco had imposed on the United Nations a “retroactive” those reports that there were still serious problems on the way
approach to solving that problem, which allowed the process tothe holding of the referendum. The Frente POLISARIO had
to encompass Moroccan populations of allegedly Saharaoui fulfilled its obligations under the Houston agreements. The
origin. Of the 180,000 applications sent by persons convoked obstructions to the referendum process undermined the
by the Identification Commission — a figure which authority of the United Nations and were not in line with the
represented an increase of more than 125 per cent of the promises of cooperation given to the Committee by the
Spanish census — more than 100,000 had been sent from delmmoepresentative during the previous session.
Mo'rocco. I-!owever, in the interests of cooperating with th 3. Mr. Ahmed (Frente POLISARIO) withdrew
United Nations, the Frente POLISARIO had accepted all
those .apphcatlons for the purposes of |dent|f|cat|0|}:\e%enda item 18: Implementation of the Declaration on
According to the Houston agreements, that process had b?h . . )
e o e Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries
concluded once the Identification Commission had convoked L
: ) and Peoples (Territories not covered under other
117,000 applicants. Yet Morocco was demanding that the ; . )
. . o . agenda items)continued (A/53/23 (parts II, V=VIII);
United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Wester
/AC.109/2102-2104, A/AC.109/2106-2110, and
Sahara (MINURSO) should convoke another 65,0
" : . : - AJAC.109/2112-2118)
Moroccan citizens belonging to the tribal groupings classifie . .
by the census as H41 and H61. That position was in violatiégenda item 87: Information from Non-Self-
of the provisions of the Houston agreements. Contrary to th&overning Territories transmitted under Article 73 e
obligations regarding cooperation, the Moroccan authoriti@é the Charter of the United Nations (continued
had been creating innumerable difficulties and obstructiof8/53/23 (part IV, chap. VIII) and A/5363)

in other essential areas of activity which were absolutefjjgenda item 88: Economic and other activities which
unrelated to the identification process. The Secretary-Geneggkct the interests of the peoples of the Non-Self-

had expressed his concern about those problems in his rep9§lerning Territories (continued (A/52/23 (part I11))
(S/1998/316). In addition, he had stated in that report that jt

was important that the United Nations demining activiti sgenqa 89: Implementation of the [?eclaratlon on the
should start as soon as possible. However, in subsequhnting of Independence to Colonial Countries and
reports, the Secretary-General had referred to problems th§CP!€S by the specialized agencies and the

had arisen in that connection, stating specifically that, in spitatérnational institutions associated with the United
of the progress made, the operational capabilities of theAtions (continued (A/53/3" (chap. VIIl, sect. D),
military units remained constrained, as their communicatio'/'}(53/23 (part 1V, chap. VII) and A/53/130 and Corr.1;
equipment had yet to be released by the Moroccan authorité/éc'logn"l%o: E/1998/176)

from Laayoune airport. He had also stated that, despigenda item 12: Report of the Economic And Social
assurances from the Moroccan authorities, the Missi@ouncil (continued (A/53/3%)

continued to be confronted with bureaucratic and proceduar§$d

) _ enda item 90: Offers by Member States of study
2;02?:;5”;” customs clearance of much needed items training facilities for inhabitants of Non-Self-
ui .

Governing Territories (continued (A/53/262 and
17. As members of the Committee were aware, thedd.l)

signature of the status-of-forces agreements was of the utmﬁgt Mr. Bune (Fiji) said that the international community
importance. The United Nations Secretariat had submitt uld be unable to carry out the task that was before it of

to the Moroccan authoriFies a draft agreement which Wasé?adicating all forms of colonialism by the year 2000; to
be approved by 30 April 1998. However, no response had

been received from Morocco until August, and the Secretary-—;
To be issued later.




A/C.4/53/SR.5

achieve that goal it would have to devise new approachesto independent referendum through which the people could
resolving the problem. The principal reason for the lack of freely express their wishes regarding their political future.

success was the lack of anyilmgness to cooperate and the22 Mr. Mapuranga (Zimbabwe) urged the administering

lack of full SUPPO“ on the part of the ad_n"!inist_ering Power%’o;/vers to cooperate with, and participate in the work of, the
He tl_ﬁo_tedt th_e W|II|ngr}ess Olf tdheladmlnlsf[ﬁqur}[% PoSwers_ pecial Committee on decolonization and to consult with the
participate in - an nformal dialogue wi € opec eoples of the Non-Self-Governing Territories to facilitate

_Commltte_e. At the same ““_“e’ he pointed out that such P grammes of political education in order to foster an
informal dialogue had essentially been one of the means u (?gareness of the possibilities open to the people in the

bythose Powers to dilute or amend the provisions containgge cise of their right to self-determination. At the same time,

in General Assembly resolutions. His delegation called on tlﬂ?e United Nations should continue to promote the ic
Committee formally to invite the administering Powers t%evelopment of those Territories

resume their membership in the Special Committee in order

to provide an opportunity, jointly and collaboratively, to worlé3. Western Sahara remained one of the unfinished items
towards the resolution of the political future of the remainingn the decolonization agenda. Seven years after the adoption
17 Non-Self-Governing Territories. The resolution of tha®f the United Nations settlement plan for the Territory, the
question required that the peoples of the Non-Self-Governifgtharan people had yet to express their views in the
Territories should be given the opportunity freely an&eferendum provided for in the plan. The recent Houston
voluntarily to express their choice. With its mandate nearir@freements brokered by the Personal Envoy of the Secretary-
its end, the Special Committee should establish priorities fpeneral, Mr. James Baker lll, had put the process, which had
its programme of work. The top priority in that programm&een gradually sidelined, back on track. His delegation
should be to obtain the free and voluntary choice of tHeelieved that the settlement plan remained the best option for
peoples of those Territories regarding their political futuréichieving a long-lasting solution in the interests of both
The Committee should seriously consider and decide on tharties and for the sake of peace and security in the region,
holding of referendums in each of the Non-Self-Governingnd urged the parties to engage in direct talks in order to
Territories so that, on the basis of the mandates received fré@golve all outstanding issues and thus give the people of
the peoples, negotiations could be held with the administeriMgestern Sahara the opportunity to exercise their democratic

Powers to give expression to the will of the people. right to determine their destiny through the referendum

stipulated in the settlement plan.
20. The administering Powers must address with greaterp P

urgency programmes to promote economic, social and hunih  Mr. Dausa CéspedegCuba) said that his delegation
development in the Territories. It was important that thwould like to dwell briefly on some decolonization issues that
institutional capacity of the Territories should be strengthené@mained outstanding. That was of even greater importance
so as to lay the foundation for the exercise of selfS the end of the International Decade for the Eradication of
determination. There was a need to consult fully with thgolonialism approached and in view of the need to develop
peoples of the Territories on all plans and programmes f@Plan of action for the future. Despite repeated appeals by
their development so that they were able to derive the benefft§ Special Committee and the General Assembly, several of
from the utilization of their natural resources. Particuldhe administering Powers were still not transmitting the
attention should be paid to the guaranteeing, protection aigjevant updated information on the Territories under their
enhancement of the fundamental rights of the indigenoG8ntrol as stipulated in Article 78 of the Charter of the
peoples in those Territories, respect for their tradition§/nited Nations. His delegation once again stressed that the
customs and culture, and the guaranteeing and protectioff@nsmission of such information was required of all

their rights to their ancestral lands and land tenure. administering Powers until such time as the General

: . Assembly took a decision on the matter.
21. His delegation welcomed the agreements reached on y

Western Sahara, New Caledonia, East Timor and Tokelau &Rt With regard to visiting missions, the cooperation of the
noted that the dialogue on the question of Gibraltar and tRéministering Powers was by no means satisfactory. The
Falkland Islands was ongoing_ In connection with thglspatCh of such missions to the territories enabled the
statement made by the representative of the United KingdstRecial Committee to gain first-hand information on local
to the Committee on 5 October, his delegation would like @Pnditions and thus increase the ability of the United Nations
recommend to that Government that, in addition to ne{ Provide assistance to the peoples of those Territories.

initiatives, it should conduct in each of its Territories a@ﬁ The peoples of Non_Se|f_Governing Territories had the
legal right to the use of their natural resources and, in



A/C.4/53/SR.5

accordance with General Assembly resolut@®1 (XXV), States Gngress. The majority of the Territories on the Fourth

his delegation once again called on the administering Powers Committee’s list of Non-Self-Governing Territories should
to take legislative, administrative or other measures without be removed from the list. If the Committee recognized that
delay to bring an end to the activities of enterprises under most Territories sought either independence or full
their jurisdiction which were engaged in the excessive integration, the result would be a decrease in the number of
exploitation of the resources of the Non-Self-Governing Territories on the list.

Territories. On the other hand, each year the Spec%_ Unfortunately,

C(_)_mmlttee must rgpeat Its concern about aCt'V.'t'eS Ofsaeem to be able to fulfil its mandate, was trying to become
military r_1ature Wh'.Ch _the coloma_l Pow_er_s co_ntlnued tﬁ)nvolved in other matters. Perhaps the time had come when
conduct in the Territorieander their administration to thetHe Fourth Committee no longer needed to operate through

e filter of the Special Committee, whose time had already

detriment of the rights and interests of the peoples affectq
Military bases and installations in colonial territories cIearI}S ssed. The resolutions of the Fourth Committee also must
c‘ﬁange with the times so that they reflected reality. His

the Special Committee, which did not

impeded the exercise of self-determination by the peoples

those Territories and they must be immediatelywithdrawaelegaltion was especially disappointed by the Special

His delegation also opposed any attempts to utilize the No(Ei)mmittee’s decision to roll back the efforts that had resulted

Self-Governing Territories and zones adjacent to tho§r§! the “omnibus resolution”. The resolution on Guam
Territories for nuclear testing, nuclear waste disposal or tpgpresented astep backward. not forward. and would make
deployment of weapons of mass destruction of any type. ;i ossible to fulfil the mandate of decolonization by the

27. The limited choices which small Non-Self-Governing year 2000.

Terr'itories encountered in thg area ofdevel'opment posggf_ The populations of the majority of the Territories in
particular problem. The solution would require cooperatio estion no longer considered — if they ever had — that the

and assistance from the specialized agencies and ot Elivities of foreign economic interests or the presence of

organizations of the United Natloqs system. .Desp|te t ilitary installations in their Territories were detrimental to
efforts made, the resources available continued to

inad d L di he off ¢ ir interests. Such assertions were borne out neither by the
Inadequate and activities to coordinate the efforts of t Sports prepared each year by the Secretariat nor by regional

various agencies of the system were not sufficiently effectivgeminars or visiting missions. On the question of sending
28. Mr. Crighton (Australia) noted that one of the most  visiting missions to Territories, the usefulness of regional
important events in recent years had been the signing in New seminars and tH#@iesdavisiting missions were still
Caledonia of the Noumea Accords. His delegation applauded subject to discussion. Unfortunately, the Specide€omm
the efforts of all involved in arriving at a broadly acceptable consistegnigried the efforts of some administering Powers
settlement of the future of New Caledonia through peaceful to open a dialogue on those and other issues.
negotiation. Within the framework of that agreement, Ne\g . While his delegation recognized the Special

Caledonia would gradually assume greater political and SOCRL mmittee’s interest in Guam, it felt that it was unfair to

powers over the next 15 to 20 years. At the end of that pe”%cus on that issue without also singling out the other Non-

the residents of New Caledonia would deglde. whether g)elf-Governing Territories. The United States supported the
assume the sovereign powers of currency, justice, defenﬁ ht of the people of Guam —all the people of Guam — to

public order and external relations. As a friendly neighbou&eek full self-government if they so desired. However, the
Australia was fully committed to cooperative and constructiv&eople of Guam had thus far not sought to achieve self-

relations with New Caledonia. government, and there were currently no indications that they

29. Mr. Minton (United States of America) said that, in  intended to do so. Another aspect of the issue was the fact that
view of the vast variety of peoples, places and political the United States immigration policy took family interests into
circumstances around the world, the United States did not account. The vast majority of immigrants in Guam were
believe that a single standard of decolonization could be sponsored by residents of that Territory. Sponsors of
applied to every Territory. In fact, the term “non-self- immigrants who had no family ties in Guam had to prove that
governing” was not wholly applicable to residents of a land the jobs to be performed by the new immigrants could not be
who were prosperous and healthy in social and economic performed by current residents of Guam. Even more
terms; who could own property in their Territory; who were  significant was the fact that the draft resolution on Guam
free to travel, migrate and return without restriction; who focused on the interests of only one segment of Guam’s
could establish their own constitution; who elected their population: the segment that was related to the Chamorro
Territory’s public officers; and who had a voice in the United people. The United States supported the right of all the



A/C.4/53/SR.5

residents of Guam to express their views on the issue of the
Territory’s decolonization. It also supported the stable
development of all forms of economic activity by all residents  demining of sites for the repatriation of refugees eligible to

of Guam, regardless of how long they had been permanent vote and their immediate families, as well as other Saharan
residents on the island. residents outside the Territory, had already begun. However,

33. Mr. Mahugu (Kenya) said that, three and a hahthose activities could not be effectively completed until

decades after the adoption of the Declaration fifrangements for the implementation of the repatriation
decolonization. there were still 17 Non-Self-Governin%ogrammes had been finalized between the United Nations

Territories. Although significant progress had been made i .

including confidence-building, infrastructure development
and road reconnaissance. It was also important that the

ission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO)

implementing General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV), muc"flnnd the_ tWOI parties. He hoped tha_tbtlhose arrangements would
remained to be done to resolve outstanding issues. In tll?gtpUt In place as soon as possibie.

connection, he commended the Special Committee on the 35. It was necessary to proceed in a balanced and careful

Situation with regard to the Implementation of the Declaration
on the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries and

manner in addressing the remaining political and operational
issues that still hampered the smooth implementation of the

Peoples for its untiring efforts to eliminate the remaining plan. He encouraged the parties concerned to continue to

vestiges of colonialism. He also recalled General Assembly
resolution 46/181 of 19 Decembed991,
“International Decade for the Eradication of Colonialism”,

and the Secretary-General’s plan of action for freeing the
world from colonialism by the end of the twentieth century.

In accordance with the plan of action, the Special Cottaa
had continued its visiting missions and had organized
seminars to review the progress made in implementing the
plan, with the participation of representatives of the peoples
other

interested parties. He supported the Spec

of Non-Self-Governing Territories, administering Powers artgi1
{

cooperate with the Secretary-General, through his Personal

etitted Envoy and his Special Representative, in seeking a final
solution that would enable the referendum to be held as

planned. He trusted that the efforts under way would break

the impasse and ensure the smooth implementation of the
sdtlement plan. Lastly, his delegation commended the work

ofthe Fourth Committee, which continued to spearhead the
international community’s efforts in the area of
decolonization.

Mr. Kamal (Pakistan) recalled that Article 7®) of

fle Charter of the United Nations emphasized the

Committee’s intention to review not only its methods 0fworl§esponsibility of the Administering Powers of colonized

but also the effectiveness of its strategies.

34.
continue to cooperate with the Special Committee to ensure
that the plan of action was successfully implemented. He
commended the Government of New Zealand for its
cooperation with the people of Tokelau and its commitment
to help them attain a greater degree of self-government and
economic self-sufficiency in preparation for the determination
of their future status. His delegation also welcomed the
Secretary-General’s recent encouraging report on the
situation in Western Sahara. Significant progress had been
made in the identification process, and he hoped that the
outstanding issues, particularly those concerning certain

tribes, would be addressed by the Secretary—GeneraoL’§

Personal Envoy, Mr. James Baker lll, during his next rour‘S;ie
of talks with the parties. He noted that the Office of the Unite

Nations High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR) hag‘
continued its preparatory work for the repatriation of Sahar
refugees, as provided for under the Settlement Plan. IEI

territories to develop self-government, to take due account
His delegation urged all administering Powers to ofthe political aspirations of the peoples, and to assist them

in the progressive development of their free political
institutions, according to the particular circumsteacés of
territory and its peoples and their varying stages of
advancement. On the basis of those provisions of the Charter,
the General Assembly had adopted on 14 D&&tnber
historic Declaration on the Granting of Independence to
Colonial Countries and Peoples, which affirmed that the
process of liberation was irresistible and irreversible and that,
in order to avoid serious crises, an end must be put to
colonialism and all practices of segregation and
discrimination associated therewith.

The world community could proudly contend, nearly 40

ars later, that the realization of freedom for hundreds of
illions of people all around the globe through a persistent
nd determined process of decolonization was a remarkable
Alhievement of the United Nations. The international
gmmunity must strengthen its efforts if it was to complete

welcomed the Moroccan Government's decision to formah%ﬁe process of decolonization before the close of the current

the presence of UNHCR and to give it free access to ”ﬁ?illennium Unfortunately

Territory of Western Sahara. It was important that UNHCIﬁ1
should begin a number of pending adtiies in the Territory,

despite the efforts that had been

ade, 17 Non-Self-Governing Territories remained under the
colonial yoke. Those Territories were dependent on the



A/C.4/53/SR.5

support and cooperation of the international community in
realizing their dream through the exercise of the right to self-
determination. 42

38. Pakistan had consistently supported the right of self-
determination for people all over the world. Unfortunately,
despite the concerted efforts of the United Nations and the
determination of Member States, the expression of self-
determination continued to be curbed in many parts of the
world. His delegation was deeply concerned at the failure of
the international community to achieve the inalienable right
of self-determination for the Kashmiri people, who had been
under Indian occupation for over half a century. Thﬁ3_
international community had recognized the right of sehtj

lack of commitment in seeking the implementation of thos,

Faipule (elected leaders of the atolls) had addressed the
Special Gtigen

In terms of the history of decolonization after the

Second World War, Tokelau hardly seemed typical. There

were some 1,500 people living on the three atolls which made
up Tokelau. Tokelau had never been a single political entity
in the modern sense but rather comprised three villages which
had been largely autonomous for hundreds of years. Nor did
New Zealand'’s involvement fit the normal pattern. There had
never, for example, been a resident New Zealand
administrative presence in Tokelau.

During his presentation to the Special Committee in

S . . “July, the Ulu had spoken of two concepts that were
determination of the Kashmiri people, notably in Secu”%ndamental to Tokelau's thinking: *

Council resolutions 47 (1948), 51 (1948), 80 (1950), and p
(1951), 98 (952) and 122 (1957). There was, however,l% become fully self-governing

all fishnder one rock”
the house of Tokelau”. The first signified that, in order
Tokelau had to ensure that all

Suthorities were directlgccountable to Tokelau institutions.

resolutions. All Security Council resolutions, Withoutrye second involved looking at the foundation for full internal

exception, must be implemented.

39. Over the past 10 years, India had used brute military
force to suppress the indigenous struggle of the Kashmiri
people for self-determination. Kashmir was currently
occupied by more than 650,000 Indian troops. Over 60’09191.
Kashmiris had been killed, and women and girls werd
systematically raped as a strategy of war. Deaths in custogx

self-government — the villages — and laying a sound

economic base. The General Fono, Tokelau’s National
Assembly, had endorsed those concepts in August as basic
guidelines for the Territory's policy.

For New Zealand, as the Administering Power, such

eas about the way ahead involved the devolution of the
ecutive and legislative powers that it had held. An

arbitrary arrests, summary executions and disappearanﬁ,ﬁﬁortam step, related to the work currently under way in

were routine occurrences. In recent months, India h
intensified artillery and mortar fire across the Line of Controi%
in Kashmir. The unabated Indian atrocities and the denial g?
the Kashmiri people’s right to self-determination was
challenge to the whole world, particularly for those thi)e
prided themselves on upholding freedom and fundamen@g

human rights.

40. Jammu and Kashmir was a pure and simple case of
neocolonialism. The Indian claim that Jammu and Kashmir
was an integral part of India was not legally or historicall 5

tenable. Jammu and Kashmir was an international@()hSt

recognized disputed territory. It remained on the agenda

kelau to put in place new village and national support
rvices, would be the withdrawal of the New Zealand State
ervices Commissioner from his role as the employing
guthority of the Tokelau Public Service. The necessary
islative change was planned by the New Zealand
vernment to take place whenever Tokelau was ready.
Against that backdrop, it was essential that the international

community reassure Tokelau that it would continue to provide
support after self-determination.

New Zealand continued to encourage Tokelau's
itutional, social and economic development. New

féaland and Tokelau had recently reached agreement on

the United Nations as an unresolved dispute. Tr}gshaping New Zealand’s Official Development Assistance

international community could not remain indifferent to th
plight of the Kashmiri people. The denial of their right to self-

rogramme
evelopment needs while helping to build the modern “house

in order to better meet Tokelau's new

determination was a violation of the Charter of the Unite f Tokelau”. From 1 July 1999, New Zealand's Official

Nations and of the principles outlined in the Declaration.

41. Mr. Powles (New Zealand) said that 1998 had been an
important year in New Zealand'’s relations with the Special
Committee in respect of Tokelau. In July, the Ulu-O-Tokelau,
titular head of the Territory, had addressed the Caite®.

Development Assistance to Tokelau would comprise three

main elements: continuing support fgoseifiment,
involving a financial contribution; project support for agreed
infrastructure, enterprise development and technical

assistance activities; and a trust fund to cover recurrent

That had been the third time since 1987 that one of tlgovernment expenditure. In addition, in order to provide
predictable and assured support, New Zealand was prepared



A/C.4/53/SR.5

to commit itself to allocating not less than NZ$ 4.5 million action to give effect to the mandate that was entrusted to the
a year for ongoing support for self-government for the five- Special Committee under the resolutions of the General
year period beginning 1 July 1999. Assembly.

46. Animportant contribution to Tokelau’s progress was 49. Nor should it be forgotten that the new forms of
also being made by the United Nations family. The United colonialism and hegemony that had been imposed on peoples
Nations Development Programme had been second onlyto  were just as harsh as traditional colonialism. They frustrated
New Zealand in providing assistance for the development of the expression of the will of the people, damaged the
Tokelau, including through the production of materials on the environment of the developimgries and, worse still,

draft Constitution and Tokelau law. The United Nations imposed on them the values and culture of the metropolitan
Children’s Fund, the United Nations Population Fund, the country. The colonial States shamelessly used all their
United Nations Volunteers, the World Health Organization, political, economic and cultural might to attain those ends.
the International Telecommunication Union and the United International mechanisms were also used for the same
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization had purpose. The comprehensive sanctions against his own
also all provided valuable support. New Zealand and Tokelau countrywere an attempt, in the interest of a dominant State,
were pleased that the Special Committee had seen meritin  to punish a country, in spite of the fact that the sanctions
adopting a separate resolution on Tokelau, given the positive served no further purpose. That showed that the old means
developments that had been occurring. Lastly, he expressed of colonial oppression were still being deployed, although in
his delegation’s satisfaction at developments in New a different form. In the struggle against colonialism it was
Zealand’s nearest neighbour, New Caledonia, particularlythe essential to adopt a comprehensive approktibs,in po
signing of the Noumea Accords in May 1998. everyday affairs and programmes, in order to emphasize that

47. Mr. Al-Anbuge (Iraq) said that, although the Centur);he concepts of colonialism and hegemony were unacceptable

and the International Decade for the Eradication ¢ th€international community.

Colonialism were coming to an end, a number of Territories  5BIr. Alzayani (Bahrain) said that the fifty-third session

were still languishing under the yoke of colonialism. Some of the General Assembly was taking place on the eve of the
people explained that by saying that the peoples of those third millennium and just before the year that would mark the
Territories preferred to be governed by the administering fortieth anniversary of the adoption of the Declaration on the
Powers, that they did not want independence and that they Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples.
were small in number and lived in geographically remote The International Decade for the Eradication of Colonialism,
regions. Some administering Powers used those Territories the focus of which was to achieve the goal of the
as military bases so as to conduct their policy from aifjams comprehensive abolition of colonialism — which, however,

of strength with respect to other States. They also used those still remained an unattainable dream for some of those who
Territories for the dumping of nuclear waste, the exploitation  were suffering under the yoke of colonialism and exploitation

of their natural resources and other types of activity that were — would soon come to an end. It could truthfully be claimed
harmful to their environment. that the tireless struggle of the United Nations against

48. His country had played an active part in the work of th%olonialism was a justifiable source of pride and satisfaction,

Special Committee on Decolonization since its establishmeﬁﬂ?jwaf an sxar;]"nple Ot: the h'itor'c rOII(Z th_at thhe Orgamzatlofn
The Special Committee called for the process ¢ad played throughout the world in the cause o

decolonization in all its forms and manifestations, Whethgecolomzatlon.

political, military or economic, to be speeded up. Haaiatry 51. The basis of the process of decolonization was the right

was also firmly opposed to any change in the demographic  of peoples to self-determination, independence and equality
character of colonial Territories, the erosion of their set forth in the United Nations Charter. Thirty-eight years
historical, cultural and ethnic differences, and also against any after the adoption by the United Nations General Assembly
impairment of the rights of colonial Territories to their of resolution 1514 (XV) on lt&nberl960, efforts to
historical and cultural heritage. It was in favour of extending achieve the total elimination of colonialism were still

to colonial countries the right to self-determination and continuing. To that end, the General Assembly had adopted
independence, irrespective of the size or location of such a number of instruments, including resolution 35/118 of 11
Territories. It had been emphasized in statements by the December 1980 the annex to which contained the Plan of
representatives of Non-Self-Governing Territories that it was  Action for the Full Implementation of the Declaration on the
essential to take into account the activities of the Granting of Independence to Colomfi€s and Peoples,
administering Powers in the Territories and to take urgent bywhich the General Assembly had reaffirmed the inalienable



A/C.4/53/SR.5

right of all peoples under colonial domination to self- 55. Her Governmentwas pleased to inform the Committee
determination and independence. Those actions had enabled that, in the past five years, 22 officials from seven Non-Self-
many countries to rid themselves of slavery and colonial Governing Territories had either attended short-term training
dependence and to take their place in the community of courses in her country or had made a study visit to Singapore
nations. The Special Committee on Decolonization had madeder its cooperation programme. In the framework of that

a significant contribution to that process. Colonialism was overall programme, technical assistance programmes were
incompatible with the United Nations Charter and the norms  formulated to meet the training needs of interested countries.
of international law, hindered international economic Haurdry provided training in several areas, including civil
cooperation and impaired the social, cultural and economic aviation, port management, environment management,
development of the Non-Self-Governing Territories. telecommunications, productivity, information technology,

52. Mr.Khan (India) said that the debate that was taking';nkmg and flnanc_:e. It was committed to_ sharing |_ts

place provided an opportunity not only to underscore a fai veI(_)pment experience V_V'th othgr (_jevelopmg countries

in the principles that had guided the role of the Unitelficluding Non-Self-Governing Territories.

Nations in the historic process of decolonization, but also to  5dr. Tekaya (Tunisia) said that the United Nations had
discuss how best to bring that collective effort to fruition. At translated into reality the principles of freedom and human
the present time, in the closing years of the century, it could dignity and had enabled peoples under colonial domination
legitimately be claimed that the trustimposed by the adoption  to determine their destiny. Nevertheless, that work was not
ofthe Charter of the United Nations and the Declaration on  yet completed, since a number of Territories were not yet able
Decolonization had been fulfilled. Much of the world was to realize their right to self-determination. That was all the
free, but the vestiges of colonialism remained a matter of more urgent, now that the Organization had set itself the task
concern. Near the end of the International Decade for the of eliminating colonialism by the end of the twentieth century.
Eradication of Colonialism, all people should approach the In order to complete that process, it was necessary to
remaining tasks in a spirit of cooperation, understanding, determine, together with all interested parties, the phases and
political realism and the required flexibility. The means ofattaining the set goals. In that connection, it would
administering Powers should fulfil their obligation to protect be useful to develop cooperation between the Special
the economies and ecologies of those Territories while Committee and the administering Powers, providing for
providing their people with the opportunity to decide what general measures by agreement between the two parties and
was in their best interest. The core of the endeavour should with the participation of the population of the Territories
continue to be to satisfy the desires of the people of the concerned. It was necessary to know the aspirations of those
remaining Non-Self-Governing Territories. It was for the peoples, since they needed to make a free choice and to
people of those Territories themselves to choose the kind of determine their own future political status. The Special
political system they preferred. Committee’s task was to assist them in that process.

53. Asafounder Member of the United Nations, his country 57. The dissemination of information on colonization made
had always associated itself fully with the important and peoples more aware of their rights and of the opportunities
arduous task of obtaining the noble goal of decolonization and for realizing those rights. The cooperation of the
was proud to have been among the co-sponsors of the administering Powers was very significant, since it helped to
Declaration on the Granting of Independence to Colonial create the conditions needed for realizing those rights. There
Countries and Peoples. It would, as always, continue was also a need to monitor the situation in the Non-Self-
steadfastly to extend support for the cherished values of Governing Territories and to assess it in order to facilitate
humaneness, coexistence, progress and freedom. their economic and social development. In that connection,

54. Ms. Fei (Singapore) said that since the 1960s hdpe regular transmission of information by the administering

country had provided technical assistance to other developﬁ] wers of |nformat|o_n_ on th_e economic and sqcmdltlons

countries, including Non-Self-Governing Territories. It had d also on the po||t|ca_l situation in the. _Terrltc_)rle_s, as well

provided technical assistance in areas in which it had tRe the _conduct O_f seminars anq of visiting MISsions to the

expertise. Through such programmes, her country hopeth%rntones, constituted an effective means which should be

be able to share positive aspects of its developmeriqf)re widely used in practice.

experience with other developing countries, including Non-  5Blr. Yousefi (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that

Self-Governing Territories, thereby contributing to the decolonization was an area in which the United Nations had

development of their economies. played an important role, resulting in remarkable
achievements in addressing the aspirations of peoples for self-

10



A/C.4/53/SR.5

determination and independence. However, some territories

remained on the list of Non-Self-Governing Territories.
Therefore, it could not be ignored that decolonization was yet
to be completed, and required further practical solutions for
the protection of the inalienable rights of the peoples of those
Territories.

59.

able to provide information on the latest developments in the

Territories. The General Assembly should renew its appeal

to the administering Powers to cooperate more closely and
formally with the Special Committee and to takeaflary
steps for implementation of the Declaration and the relevant

United Nations resolutions.
At the end of the International Decade for the 6Ar. Hassan(Nigeria) said that Nigeria supported the

Eradication of Colonialism and on the eve of the new principles of self-determination as enunciated in the

millennium, it was unfortunate that the process of
decolonization had not yet been concluded. The international
community should redouble its efforts at fulfilling the aims
of a world free of colonial domination. His delegation
believed that the principle of self-determination with respect
to the remaining Territories within the framework of the Plan

relevant General Assembly resolutions and the Charter of
United Nations.

of Action should be implemented in accordance with thbgg

60. His delegation called on the administering Powers to
cooperate further with the Special Committee in the discharge
of its mandate and to participate actively in the work relating

to the Territories under their respective administrations. The
peoples of those Territories had to be given the opportunity
to exercise their right to choose their own future freely. In that

regard, the Special Committee must continue its efforts for
a speedy and unconditional end to colonialism in all its forms

and manifestations, in accordance with the Declaration on
decolonization.

61. Withregard to the informal consultations between t

Declaration on decolonization. It likewise supported all

actions consistent with the Charter of the United Nations

aimed at the elimination of colonialism all over the world. It
believed in the efficacy of those principles and urged strict

implementation of General Assembly resolutions on

decolonization and self-determination.

Nigeria commended the innovative approach adopted

the Special Committee. Nigeria would continue to give its
full support to the Special Committee in its endeavour to

implement its objective of bringing an end to the era of
colonialism by the@ear Assistanceh®uld be given to

the colonial Territories to help establish sound economic
foundations and good political education so as to enable them
to carry the responsibilities of self-government. The United
Nations and its specialized agehoiglsl sncrease
development-assistance programmes to the Non-Self-
Governing Territories, especially in human-resources
development. His delegation would continue to participate

actively in the work of the United Nations and its agencies to
fnsure the implementation of the International Decade for the

Special Committee and the administering Powers in recé%r[adication of Colonialism. It would continue to cooperate

years, his delegation believed that those consultations ha

d:lt%selywith all members of the Fourth Committee to ensure

be strengthened and transformed into formal cooperation &H& attainment of that noble goal.

formal participation in the work of the Special Committee.
It was imperative that the administering Powers should
consider a new approach vis-a-vis the work of the Special
Committee and render their cooperation where required.

62.
visiting missions to Non-Self-Governing Territories in ordef
to facilitate the full, speedy and effective implementation dfm
the Declaration on decolonization.

His delegation emphasized the need to dispatch perioﬁ]

constructive role played by such missions in the past, the

66Vr. Bandora (United Republic of Tanzania) noted that

the United Nations would soon be celebrating the fiftieth
anniversary of the adoption of the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights. That would afford the international community

g opportunity to assess its performance in the area of human
ights and to look at decolonization as one of its most
portant accomplishments in the promotion of that
In the light of théundamental human right, the right to determine one’s own
litical destiny. The growth in the membership of the

General Assembly should attach utmost importance to thif9anization had been in large measure a result of the

dispatch of visiting missions as a means of collectin

xercise by countries and peoples of their right to self-

Jjetermination and independence. It should not be forgotten,
Self-Governing Territories. however, that there remained_ 17 Territpries whose pe_op_le had
so far not been able to exercise that right. Responsibility for
63. He reiterated the need for the transmission @f{at sjtuation rested not with the United Nations but with
information by the administering Powers under Article B ( those who continued to exercise colonial control over those
of the Charter. Moreover, the contribution of thergrritories and who moved reluctantly towards granting them

representatives of the Non-Self-Governing Territories to thgeijr right to self-determination. The onus of granting the
work of the Special Committee was valuable, since they weggyn-Self-Governing Territories their right to self-

adequate first-hand information on conditions in the No

11



A/C.4/53/SR.5

determination rested with the administering Powers, and the on the statement made by the representative of the United
United Nations had the responsibility to continue urging those  States with regard to the mandate of the SpecitE€Eomm
Powers to expedite that process. The international community on decolonization and its activities. A member of his
must have a continuing commitment to that principle and must  delegation had had the honour of serving as Rapporteur of the
continue holding the administering Powers to their Special Committee for a number of years. Like many other
responsibilities towards the Territories as well as to theiountries of the world, the Syrian Arab Republic was proud
obligations towards the rest of the international community. of the Special Committee’s achievements. Many of the States
Their responsibilities included putting in place effective now represented in the United Nations had achieved
social and economic development programmes, giving them membership thanks to the efforts made by the Special
greater say in the exploitation of their natural resources and Committee on decolonization on their behalf. The real
use of the accruing earnings, initiating and expanding, in difficulty was that some parties did not allow the Special
consultation with the peoples of the Territories, political- Cdttea to perform its functions properly and that 17 Non-
education programmes to foster greater awareness by the Self-Governing Territories were still under one form or
people of their own and the global political environment as another of colonial rule. At the same time, there had been a
well as sensitizing them to the political-status options open number of encouraging developments, particularly with
to them in the exercise of their right to self-determination. In  regard to relations between New Zealand and Tokelau, and
pursuance of Article 73€) of the Charter of the United between France and New Caledonia, and so on. His
Nations, the administering Powers must continue to transmit  delegation believed that the Special Committee’s mandate
information on the Territories and to facilitate United Nations was more significant today than ever. As for iitsesctins

visiting missions to ascertain the level of progress and of delegation considered that everything fuaslithleesione
preparedness of the population to exercise freely their right  to enable it to establish contact with the people of the Non-
to self-determination. Self-Governing Territories. Some States continued to prevent
67. It should be noted that a number of positivéhe Special Committee from doing its work and did not allow

developments had taken place in the course of the past yégﬂ sehd V|’S|t|_ng_m|ss!on_s to those Therrltolrles. T_he Shpehc_lal
His delegation was particularly encouraged by the progreggmm'ttee S visiting missions were the only way in which it

made in Western Sahara, in particular the wiIIingnescé)L"d receive first-hand information and learn the wishes of
expressed by the parties to the conflict — the Frenf@e people of the Non-Self-Governing Territories. It was

POLISARIO and the Kingdom of Morocco — to Workencouraging that an overwhelming majority of the world
together towards the implementation of the settlement pl prorted the role of the Special Committee. That support had

in accordance with the Houston agreements, and the state ffin expressed in th_e Fourth Committee and at the S‘_Jmm't

by the Personal Envoy of the Secretary-General that Aeetings of the non-aligned mover_nent. !nsteqd of seeking to
intended to initiate an evaluation of the plan to see wheth§#St doubt on th? role Of_ the SPeC'a' Coma‘g, it would b?

it could be implemented in its present form or would requirBetter to _enter into a direct dialogue with it and allow it to

some adjustments. His delegation had also taken note of §74"Y Out its work.

progress made in the negotiation of a status-of-forces M. Ovia (Papua New Guinea), speaking in exercise
agreement between Algeria, Morocco and Mauritania. The of the right of reply said that he wished to comment on the
conclusion of that agreement would be another major step statement made by the representative of the United States. His
towards the comprehensive implementation of the settlement delegation believed that the Special Committee on
plan. Both the Organization of African Unity and the United decolonization could make significant progress when it had
Nations were responsible under the plan for ensuring that the  the full cooperation of the administering Powers. Examples
people of Western Sahara were given the opportunity to  ofsuch cooperation could be found in the relations between
exercise their right to self-determination. France and New Caledonia and between New Zealand and

68. His delegation had also taken note of the agreemdikelau, as well as in many other Territories. In that
reached with regard to the future of East Timor. It urged tHegPNNection, he appealed to the United States to cooperate
Governments of Indonesia and Portugal to continue thdf!ly SO that the Special Committee could make progress in
dialogue in order to reach definitive agreement on |5swor_k. He thanked all the Members c_>fthe Umt_ed Natlor)s
permanent status for East Timor, taking into account tH@" their supportof the work of the Special Committee. In his
wishes of its people. opinion, the statement_ by the Unltfed States_ representative that
perhaps the Special Committee’s time had passed

69. Mr. Mekdad (Syrian Arab Republic), speaking in¢ontradicted the general trend. With regard to the question
exercise of the right of reply, said that he wished to comment

12



A/C.4/53/SR.5

of Guam, the degree to which the separate resolution on it finally to allow a visiting mission to visit the Territory of
represented a step forward or backward, the representatives Guam so that it could learn at first hand how matters stood.
of the people of Guam had already addressed the Committee  Unfortunately, despite repeated requests, more than 20 years
and in his delegation’s opinion, it was a step forward. At had elapsed since a mission had been able to visit Guam.
presen_t what was important was the_wordlng to b_e usedin tJFﬁe meeting rose at 1 p.m.

resolution and he called on delegations to consider, together

with the people of Guam, the contents of the resolution and

to continue their efforts to put an end to colonialism.

71. With regard to the question of the holding of regional
seminars, he said that for many years the Special Committee
on decolonization had requested that visiting missions should
be sent. Visiting missions to specific Territories such as
Guam and meetings with their inhabitants enabled the Special
Committee to make progress in its work. He wasginced

that only by means of visiting missions could the Special
Committee and other parties learn about the situation on the
spot.

72. Mr. Benitez Verson (Cuba), speaking in exercise of
the right of reply, said that his delegation would certainly
prefer that a spirit of cooperation rather than confrontation
should prevail in the Committee’s worlkebause cooperation
was the best way to support the efforts of the United Nations
in the field of decolonization. Nevertheless, after the
statement made by the representative of the United States, his
delegation had no choice but to exercise its right of reply.
After the adoption by the General Assembly of dozens of
resolutions on the question of decolonization on the
recommendation of the Special Committee, the United States
delegation was announcing to the Committee that its mandate
no longer had any meaning. To call into question the mandate
of the Special Committee on decolonization at a time when
the United Nations had still not achieved the goals of the
International Decade for the Eradication of Colonialism was
not only surprising but would have very dangerous
consequences. In its statement, the representative of the
United States had also called into question the usefulness of
holding regional seminars. In its resolutions on the subject
the General Assembly took the diametrically opposite point
of view. It emphasized the importance of such seminars as a
means of fostering the exchange of opinions and of ensuring
the participation of the Non-Self-Governing Territories, the
administering Powers and experts. Finally, in connection with
the statement that the Special Committee had taken a step
backwards on the question of Guam, he said that the
Committee was doing everything possible to achieve an
agreement satisfactory to all sides while taking into account
the legitimate interests of the people of Guam. He expressed
regret at the lack of cooperation on the part of the
administering Power in seeking to achieve those goals. The
first step in the right direction would be for the United States

13



